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 Appendix B  Tolka River Crossing Drawing 
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Maeve Toal

From: Gretta Hannigan <Gretta.Hannigan@fisheriesireland.ie>
Sent: 12 May 2014 10:39
To: Maeve English
Cc: Brian Beckett
Subject: FW: EIS Scoping Aviation Pipeline Dublin Port to Dublin Airport Fingleton White

Ms Maeve English 
Feehily, Timoney and Co., 
Consultants in Engineering & Environmental Sciences. 
 
 
RE: EIS for an Aviation Pipeline from Dublin Port to Dublin Airport. 
 
Your Ref : Q:/LE10/727/01/Let15/ME/MG 
 
Dear Maeve, 
 
I refer to your letter of April 10th in respect of a proposal by Fingleton White  to construct and operate an aviation 
fuel pipeline from Dublin Port to Dublin Airport. 
 
The ecological integrity of surface water systems the River Tolka which represents a regionally significant salmonid
system, Mayne, Cuckoo and Santry Rivers must be protected at all times and should not deteriorate in any way as a
result of either construction or operation of the proposed development. The Cuckoo and Mayne Rivers are non-salmonid, 
however with improvements in habitat and  water quality we are hopeful of an positive change  in fisheries status. The 
Santry River is non-salmonid due of the presence of a number of impassable features located toward the lower end of
the system. The Wad  is extensively culverted and  is non salmonid. 
 

 All works should  be completed in line with an Construction Management Plan which ensures that good
construction practices are adopted throughout the construction period  and contains mitigation measures  to 
deal with potential adverse impacts  identified in advance of the scheme. 

 
 As with any development, all measures necessary should be taken to ensure comprehensive protection of local

aquatic ecological integrity, in the first place by complete impact avoidance and as a secondary approach 
through mitigation by reduction and remedy. River and stream crossings should be planned and executed in
an environmentally sensitive way. The proposal to cross all watercourse by trenchless techniques is welcomed.
Trenchless crossings will not be subject to salmonid seasonal constraints. Borehole exploratory work in salmonid
systems should  be completed during the period May to September.  .  

 Any works associated with  watercourses or riparian habitats including trenchless crossings  are subject to 
Method Statement and  must be submitted to IFI ( ERBD) for assessment and approval. 

 Construction works have significant potential to cause the release of sediments and pollutants into 
surrounding watercourses. Pollution of the adjacent waters from poor on-site construction practices could 
have a significantly negative impact on the fauna and flora of this surface water system. A comprehensive 
and integrated approach for river protection during construction and operation should be implemented. Pipe 
laying activity poses a high risk of suspended solid contamination of surface waters , if dewatering of 
the  launch  and reception pits or water jetting of the pipe is required  water must be treated by either 
infiltration over land, discharge to a Local Authority sewer or to a suitably sized and sited settlement pond 
before discharge to any watercourse. There can be no direct pumping of contaminated water from the works 
to a watercourse at any time. 

 Appropriate bunding should be in place at all high risk refuelling and storage locations (hydrocarbon interception 
etc.). The short-term storage and removal / disposal of excavated material must be considered and planned
such that risk of pollution from these activities is minimised.  

 Works to the river banks / bed must not impact negatively on the water quality / fisheries habitat. All works
areas should be reinstated fully in a manner that minimises the potential for erosion.  

 
Please provide us with a copy of the EIS when complete. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
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Gretta Hannigan 
 
 
Gretta Hannigan 
Senior Fisheries Environmental Officer 
--------------------------------------------  
Iascach Intíre Éireann  
Inland Fisheries Ireland  
   
Tel      +353 (0)1 2787 022 
Fax     +353 (0)1 2787 025 
Email   gretta.hannigan@fisheriesireland.ie 

Web    www.fisheriesireland.ie 

15a Main Street, Blackrock, County Dublin, IRELAND. 
-------------------------------------------- 

 

 
 
This email and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual to 
whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessarily 
represent those of Inland Fisheries Ireland. If you are not the intended recipient of this email, you must neither take 
any action based upon its contents, nor copy or show it to anyone. Please contact the sender if you believe you have 
received this email in error.  
 
 
This email and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of the 
individual to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do 
not necessarily represent those of Inland Fisheries Ireland. If you are not the intended recipient of this email, 
you must neither take any action based upon its contents, nor copy or show it to anyone. Please contact the 
sender if you believe you have received this email in error.  
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Maeve Toal

From: Reception
Sent: 17 April 2014 16:00
To: Maeve English
Subject: FW: G Pre00158/2014 - Fuel pipeline Dublin Port to Dub Airport

Categories: Red Category

FYI 
Mary 
 

From: Manager Dau [mailto:Manager.Dau@ahg.gov.ie]  
Sent: 17 April 2014 15:54 
To: Reception 
Subject: G Pre00158/2014 - Fuel pipeline Dublin Port to Dub Airport 
 
**PLEASE FORWARD TO MAEVE ENGLISH** 
 
Our Ref: G Pre00158/2014 
(Please quote in all related correspondence) 
  
Fehily Timoney & Co 
FAO Maeve English 
 
Maeve, a chara 
  
I acknowledge receipt of your recent consultation. 
 
In the event of observations, you will receive a co‐ordinated heritage‐related response by email from Development 
Applications Unit (DAU) on behalf of the Department. 
  
If after six weeks from the date of your enquiry you have not heard from DAU and wish to receive an update, please 
‘phone the direct line number below or, alternatively, 053‐911 7500 and ask for DAU. 
 
Important additional information: 
Pre‐planning consultations should only be sent to Development Applications Unit, which co‐ordinates for the 
Department across the three heritage sections.  Duplicate correspondence sent to NPWS or elsewhere in the 
Department is not necessary and can lead to duplication of effort and potential confusion.  
  
This office issues all responses and communications by email and, accordingly, inward consultations/enquiries by 
email are preferred.  Please send your emails only to manager.dau@ahg.gov.ie  (Note: i) it is not necessary to also 
send a hard copy; and ii) please send a maximum of two attachments).  
 
Le meas 
 
Muiris Ó Conchúir 
Manager, Development Applications Unit (DAU) 
Bainisteoir, Aonad um Iarratais Forbartha 
Department of Arts, Heritage & the Gaeltacht 
Roinn Ealaíon, Oidhreachta & Gaeltachta 
Newtown Road, Wexford 
Br an Bhaile Nua, Loch Garman 
T: 053‐911 7387 (direct/díreach) 
Reception/Fáiltiú: 053‐911 7500 
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********************************************************************** 
Is faoi rún agus chun úsáide an té nó an aonán atá luaite leis, a sheoltar an ríomhphost seo agus aon comhad 
atá nasctha leis. Má bhfuair tú an ríomhphost seo trí earráid, déan teagmháil le bhainisteoir an chórais. 

Deimhnítear leis an bhfo-nóta seo freisin go bhfuil an teachtaireacht ríomhphoist seo scuabtha le bogearraí 
frithvíorais chun víorais ríomhaire a aimsiú. 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual 
or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system 
manager. 

This footnote also confirms that this email message has been swept by anti-virus software for the presence 
of computer viruses. 
********************************************************************** 



 

  

 

Our Ref: G Pre00158/2014 
 

28 May 2014 
 
Maeve English 
Fehily Timony & Company 
Core House 
Pouladuff Road 
Cork 
Maeve.english@ftco.ie 
 
Re: EIS scoping for aviation fuel pipeline from Dublin Port to Dublin Airport. 
 
A Chara, 
 
On behalf of the Department of Arts, Heritage and the Gaeltacht, I refer to your notification in 
relation to the above proposal. Outlined below are the observations of the Department of Arts, 
Heritage and the Gaeltacht in relation to archaeology and to nature conservation. 
 
Archaeology 
 
The Department notes the intention of the developer to submit an EIS in respect of the proposed 
construction of the fuel pipeline.  
 
The services of a suitably qualified archaeologist should be engaged to carry out an assessment of 
the revised pipeline route and to evaluate its impact on archaeological sites and potential sites 
along the route. The results of this assessment should be included in the Environmental Impact 
Assessment. 
 
The archaeologist should consult with all appropriate authorities, in particular the Dublin City 
Archaeologist. 
 
Nature Conservation 
 
EIS 
With regard to scoping for an EIS for this proposed development an ecological survey should be 
carried out of the proposed compound sites and route of the pipeline to survey the habitats and 
species present. Where ex-situ impacts are possible survey work may be required outside of the 
development sites. Such surveys should be carried out by suitably qualified persons at an 
appropriate time of the year depending on the species being surveyed for. The EIS should include 
the results of the surveys, and detail the survey methodology and timing of such surveys. Inland 
Fisheries Ireland should be consulted with regard to fish species if applicable. With regard to any 
existing records the data of the National Parks and Wildlife Service (NPWS) should be consulted at 
www.npws.ie and the data of the National Biodiversity Data Centre at 
http://www.biodiversityireland.ie/. Reference should be made to the National Biodiversity Plan and 
any relevant County Biodiversity Plan. The EIS should also address the issue of invasive alien 
plant and animal species, such as Japanese Knotweed, and detail the methods required to ensure 
they are not accidentally introduced or spread during construction. Information on alien invasive 
species in Ireland can be found at http://invasives.biodiversityireland.ie/ and at 
http://invasivespeciesireland.com/. 
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The impact of the development on the flora, fauna and habitats present should be assessed. In 
particular the impact of the proposed development should be assessed, where applicable, with 
regard to: 
 

• Natura 2000 sites, i.e. Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) designated under the EC Habitats 
Directive (Council Directive 92/43/EEC) and Special Protection Areas designated under the EC 
Birds Directive (Directive 2009/147 EC), 

• Other designated sites, or sites proposed for designation, such as Natural Heritage Areas, 
Nature Reserves and Refuges for Fauna or Flora, designated under the Wildlife Acts of 1976 
and 2000, 

• Habitats listed on annex I of the Habitats Directive,  

• Species listed on Annexes II and IV of the Habitats Directive,  

• Habitats important for birds,  

• Birds listed on Annex I of the EC Birds Directive, 

• Species protected under the Wildlife Acts including protected flora,  

• Habitats that can be considered to be corridors or stepping stones for the purpose of article 10 
of the Habitats Directive, 

• Red data book species, 

• and biodiversity in general.   
 
In order to assess the above impacts it may be necessary to obtain hydrological and/or geological 
data. In particular any impact on water table levels or groundwater flows may impact on wetland 
sites some distance away. The EIS should assess cumulative impacts with other plans or projects 
if applicable. Where negative impacts are identified suitable mitigation measures should be 
detailed if appropriate. As Ireland has to report every 6 years on the National resource of habitats 
and species listed under the Habitats Directive it is important that any impact on such habitats and 
species both inside and outside of Natura 2000 sites is recorded.  
 
Where there are impacts on protected species and their habitats, resting or breeding places, 
licenses may be required under the Wildlife Acts or derogations under the Habitats Regulations. In 
particular bats and otters are strictly protected under annex IV of the Habitats Directive and a copy 
of Circular Letter NPWS 2/07 entitled “Guidance on Compliance with Regulation 23 of the Habitats 
Regulations 1997 – strict protection of certain species/applications for derogation licences” can be 
found on our web site at http://www.npws.ie/media/npws/publications/circulars/media,6686,en.pdf. 
In addition licenses will be required if there are any impacts on other protected species or their 
resting or breeding places, such as on protected plants, badger setts or birds’ nests. Hedgerows 
should be maintained where possible. Where trees or hedges have to be removed there should be 
suitable planting of native species in mitigation. The EIS should estimate the length of hedgerow 
that will be lost, if any. Where possible hedges and trees should not be removed during the nesting 
season (i.e. March 1st to August 31st). Birds’ nests can only be intentionally destroyed under 
licence issued under the Wildlife Acts of 1976 and 2000. In order to apply for any such licenses or 
derogations as mentioned above a detailed survey should be submitted to NPWS which should 
have been carried out by appropriately qualified person/s. Such licences should be applied for in 
advance of planning to avoid delays and in case project modifications are necessary.  
 
Should the original survey work take place well before construction commences it is recommended 
that an ecological survey of the development site should take place immediately prior to 
construction to ensure no significant change in the baseline ecological survey has occurred. If 
there has been any significant change mitigation may require amendment and there may be a 
need for new licence applications with regard to protected species. In such a case NPWS should 
be consulted.  
 
You should refer to the various circular letters issued by the National Parks and Wildlife Service of 
this Dept. which can be found at http://www.npws.ie/planning/appropriateassessment/  In particular 
Circular Letter PD 2/07 and NPWS 1/07 on the use of compliance conditions is relevant and in 
order to allow for a complete assessment, it is essential that any mitigation measures detailed in 
the EIS and/or NIS form part of a construction management plan which must be implemented by 
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the successful contractor at construction phase. This must be detailed in the EIS/NIS. It is not 
possible to adequately assess the impact of the project without knowing the minimum standards 
and mitigation measures that will be in any construction methodology or plans.  
 
Appropriate Assessment 
In accordance with article 6.3 of the Habitats Directive, this project should be subject to appropriate 
assessment (AA) screening and if necessary appropriate assessment.  
 
It is noted that there will be some river crossings and these are to be trenchless. It should be noted 
that any impacts on such rivers could impact on Natura 2000 sites downstream. This issue should 
be assessed. 
 
Some Guidance documents are referred to below which may help. However CJEU case law has to 
some extent clarified certain issues, in particular case C-258/2011- N6 Galway City Outer Bypass. 
As a result of this permanent loss of a habitat for which a site has been designated has been 
established to mean that there is a significant effect on the site. Therefore it is the view of this 
Dept. that if any loss of a habitat or habitat of a species for which the site is designated cannot be 
ruled out with certainty at screening, the likelihood of an adverse effect on the integrity of the site 
must be assumed, thus proceeding to appropriate assessment.  
 
Guidance on AA is available in the Departmental guidance document on Appropriate Assessment, 
which is available on the NPWS web site at 
http://www.npws.ie/media/npws/publications/codesofpractice/AA%20Guidance%2010-12-09.pdf 
and in the EU Commission guidance entitled “Assessment of plans and projects significantly 
affecting Natura 2000 sites. Methodological guidance on the provisions of Article 6(3) and (4) of the 
Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC” which can be downloaded from 
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/nature/natura2000/management/docs/art6/natura_2000_assess_e
n.pdf 
 
A rule of thumb often used is to include all Natura 2000 sites within a distance of 15km. It should 
be noted however that this will not always be appropriate. In some instances where there are 
hydrological connections a whole river catchment or a groundwater aquifer may need to be 
included.  
 
In order to carry out the appropriate assessment screening and/or prepare a NIS you will need to 
collect information about the relevant Natura 2000 sites including their conservation objectives. 
Details of designated sites and species and conservation objectives can be found on www.npws.ie 
. Site-specific, as opposed to generic, conservation objectives are now available for some sites. 
Each conservation objective is defined by a list of attributes and targets. Where these are not 
available for a site it is recommended that you look at the detailed conservation objectives for other 
sites which have the same qualifying interests. For example if a site without detailed conservation 
objectives has otters as a qualifying interest you could refer to the River Barrow and River Nore 
SAC detailed conservation objectives to see how otters are treated. You might also note that it is 
now advised, as per the notes and guidelines in the detailed conservation objectives, that any 
reports quoting conservation objectives should give the version number and date. This will allow 
statutory consultees and others assessing reports to be confident that the correct and most up to 
date version of the conservation objectives are used at the time of writing any report.  
 
Where further detail is required on any information on the NPWS website, a data request form 
should be submitted. This can be found at 
http://www.npws.ie/media/npws/publications/Data%20request%20form.doc. It should be noted that 
at present due to technical problems not all the most up to date conservation objectives have been 
added to the website. In particular site specific conservation objectives are now available for North 
Dublin Bay. While this issue will shortly be rectified it would be worth checking via the data request 
form that all the most recent conservation objectives for any sites you are interested in are up to 
date on this web site.  
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As stated above various circular letters issued by the National Parks and Wildlife Service of this 
Dept. can be found at http://www.npws.ie/planning/appropriateassessment/. In particular Circular 
Letter PD 2/07 and NPWS 1/07 on the use of compliance conditions is relevant. In order to allow 
for a complete assessment, it is essential that any mitigation measures detailed in the EIS and/or 
NIS form part of a construction management plan to be implemented by the successful contractor 
at construction phase. This should be detailed in the EIS/NIS. It is not possible to adequately 
assess the impact of the project without knowing the minimum standards and mitigation measures 
that will be in any construction methodology or plans.  
 
 It is recommended that you consult with the relevant Local Authorities to determine if there are any 
projects or plans which alone or in combination could impact on any Natura sites 
 
 
The acknowledgement to this letter or any further information should ideally be sent to 
manager.dau@ahg.gov.ie; if this is not possible, correspondence may alternatively be sent to: 
 
 The Manager 
 Development Applications Unit 
 Department of Arts, Heritage and the Gaeltacht 
 Newtown Road 

Wexford 
 
Finally, the above observations and recommendations are based on the papers submitted to this 
Department on a pre-planning basis and are made without prejudice to any observations the 
Minister may make in the context of any consultation arising on foot of any development 
application referred to the Minister, by the planning authority, in his role as statutory consultee 
under the Planning and Development Act 2000, as amended. 
 
Is mise, le meas 

 
 
Patricia O’Leary 
Development Applications Unit 
Tel: (053) 911 7482 
 



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D  An Bord Pleanála – PL 29N.245738 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























































 

 

 

 

 

 Appendix E   Dublin City Council - 2552/15  

 

 

 

 

 

 



























 

 

 

 

 

  Appendix F    Company Documentation  

 

 

 

 

 

 






















